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The Exhibit Index appears on page 19.

PARTI FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets (Note 4)
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $304 and $349
Inventories (Note 3)
Prepaid and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets
Inventories, net non-current (Note 3)
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization
Patents, net
Other assets, net
Deferred income taxes

(In thousands)

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 4)
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Income taxes payable
Other accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt (Note 4)
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders equity:

Preferred stock, $.001 par value; authorized 5,000
shares;

no shares outstanding

Common stock, $.001 par value; authorized 25,000
shares, 8,465 shares Issued

Paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock, at cost, 2,242 shares,

(unaudited)
September 30,
2008

$1,488

3,699
8,471
1,198
453
15,309
5,121

4,119
103

390
1,903
$26,945

$213
2,232
435
49
273
3,202

3,787

25,124
2,789
(654)
(7,311)

December 31,
2007

$270

2,926
8,572
939
453
13,160
5,868

4,530
74

414
1,903
$25,949

$2,560
1,779
524

49

346
5,258

14

24,887
3,747
(654)
(7,311)
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Total stockholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

20,677
$25,949

BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended

September 30,
2008 2007
Net sales $9,709 $9,211
Cost of goods sold 6,810 5,737
Gross profit 2,899 3,474
Operating expenses:
Selling 1,049 1,123
General and administrative 1,225 1,172
Research and development 480 454
2,754 2,749
Income (loss) from operations 145 725
Other Expense: Interest expense
(net) (95) (122)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations
before income taxes 50 603
Provision (benefit) for income - =
taxes
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 50 603
Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued operations
(net of
tax) (18) (31)
Loss on disposal of Assets of - -
Discontinued Operations
Total discontinued operations (18) (31)
Net income (loss) $32 $572
Basic and diluted income (loss) per
share
from continuing operations $0.01 $0.10
Basic and diluted loss per share from
discontinued operations - $(0.01)
Basic and diluted loss per share on
disposal. - -

- $(0.01)
Basic and diluted net income (loss)

per

Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2008
$25,155
16,955
8,200

3,238
3,795
1,452
8,485

(285)

(345)

(630)

(630)

(38)
(290)

(328)
$(958)

$(0.10)

2007
$24,720
16,371
8,349

3,733
3,799
1,354
8,886

(537)

(358)

(895)

(895)

(197)
(59)

(256)
$(1,151)
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share $0.01 $0.09 $(0.15)
Basic and diluted weighted average

shares

outstanding 6,222 6,222 6,222

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

$(0.18)

6,222

BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2008 2007
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss $(958) $(1,151)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by
operating activities:

Stock compensation expense 237 296
Loss on Hybrid s property and equipment 290 =
Depreciation 298 351
Amortization 26 25
Allowance for doubtful accounts (45) 71
Provision for inventory reserves (3,407) 558
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (728) 201
Inventories 4,255 (486)
Prepaid and other current assets (259) (273)
Other assets 24 278
Income taxes - (11)
Accounts payable, accrued compensation and other
accrued expenses 291 593
Net cash provided by operating activities 24 452
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (214) (127)
Proceeds on sale of Hybrid property and equipment 37 -
Acquisition of patents (55) -
Net cash used in investing activities (232) (127)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings of debt 23,940 24,815
Repayments of debt (22,514) (25,071)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,426 (256)
Net increase in cash 1,218 69
Cash, beginning of period 270 84
Cash, end of period $1,488 $153
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $353 $372
Cash paid for income taxes - $11
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Note 1 - Company and Basis of Presentation

Blonder Tongue Laboratories, Inc. (the Company ) is a designer, manufacturer and supplier of electronics and systems equipment for the
cable television industry, primarily throughout the United States. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blonder Tongue
Laboratories, Inc. and subsidiaries. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The results for the periods ended September 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year and
have not been audited. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments,
consisting primarily of normal recurring accruals, necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations for the periods presented and the
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2008. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the SEC rules and regulations.
These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto that were included in the Company s
latest annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements

Third three months of 2008 Compared with third three months of 2007

Cash balances at financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ( FDIC ) up to $250,000 per insured entity.
Balances of cash at financial institutions may at times exceed the FDIC limit.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157
establishes a single definition of fair value and a framework for measuring fair value, sets out a fair value hierarchy to be used to classify the
source of information used in fair value measurements, and requires new disclosures of assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on
their level in the hierarchy. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. In
February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Positions ( FSPs ) No. 157-1 and No. 157-2, which, respectively, remove leasing transactions from the
scope of SFAS No. 157 and defer its effective date for one year relative to certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. As a result, the application
of the definition of fair value and related disclosures of SFAS No. 157 (as impacted by these two FSPs) was effective for the Company
beginning January 1, 2008 on a prospective basis with respect to fair value measurements of (a) nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Company s financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually) and (b) all financial assets and
liabilities. This adoption did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated results of operations or financial condition. The
remaining aspects of SFAS No. 157 for which the effective date was deferred under FSP No. 157-2. Areas impacted by the deferral relate to
nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, but are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. This
deferral applies to such items as nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination (but not measured at
fair value in subsequent periods) or nonfinancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for an impairment assessment. The effects of
these remaining aspects of SFAS No. 157 are to be applied to fair value measurements prospectively beginning January 1, 2009. The Company
does not expect them to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 141R, "Business Combinations" ("SFAS
141R"), which replaces SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations." SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for determining how an
enterprise recognizes and measures the fair value of certain assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination, including noncontrolling
interests, contingent consideration, and certain acquired contingencies. SFAS 141R also requires acquisition-related transaction expenses and
restructuring costs be expensed as incurred rather than capitalized as a component of the business combination. SFAS 141R will be applicable
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. SFAS 141R would have an impact on accounting for any businesses acquired after the effective date of this
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pronouncement.

BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 161 "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 "("SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 changes the disclosure requirements for derivative
instruments and hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why an entity uses derivative
instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related interpretations, and
(c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The guidance
in SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early
application encouraged. This Statement encourages, but does not require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. At this
time, management is evaluating the implications of SFAS 161 and has not yet determined its impact on the Company s financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ( SFAS 162 ). SFAS 162 is
intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, for selecting accounting principles to be used in
preparing financial statements that are presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The guidance in SFAS 162
replaces that prescribed in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, and becomes effective 60 days following the SEC s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board s
auditing amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The
adoption of SFAS 162 will not have an impact on the Company s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ( FSP ) APB 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement). This FSP clarifies that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon
conversion (including partial cash settlement) are not addressed by paragraph 12 of APB Opinion No. 14, Accounting for Convertible Debt and
Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants. Additionally, this FSP specifies that issuers of such instruments should separately account for the
liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in
subsequent periods. This FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect FSP APB 14-1 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are
Participating Securities . This FSP addresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating securities prior to
vesting and, therefore, need to be included in the earnings allocation in computing earnings per share (EPS) under the two-class method
described in paragraphs 60 and 61 of FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings per Share. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those years. The Company is in the process of determining
the impact FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset in a Market That Is
Not Active ( FSP 157-3 ), which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 when the market for a financial asset is inactive. Specially, FSP 157-3
clarifies how (1) management s internal assumptions should be considered in measuring fair value when observable data are not present, (2)
observable market information from an inactive market should be taken into account, and (3) the use of broker quotes or pricing services should
be considered in assessing the relevance of observable and unobservable data to measure fair value. The guidance in FSP 157-3 was effective
immediately including prior periods for which financial statements had not been issued. The implementation of this standard did not have a
material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB, the EITF, the SEC and or other standards-setting bodies that do
not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.
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BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Note 3 Inventories

Inventories net of reserves are summarized as follows:

(unaudited)

Sept 30, Dec. 31,
2008 2007
Raw Materials $7,569 $9,169
Work in process 2,054 1,592
Finished Goods 7,706 10,823
17,329 21,584
Less current inventory (8,471) (8,572)
8,858 13,012

Less Reserve primarily for excess
inventory (3,737) (7,144)
$5,121 $5,868

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the first-in, first-out ( FIFO ) method, or market.

The Company periodically analyzes anticipated product sales based on historical results, current backlog and marketing plans. Based on
these analyses, the Company anticipates that certain products will not be sold during the next twelve months. Inventories that are not anticipated
to be sold in the next twelve months, have been classified as non-current.

Approximately 43% of the non-current inventories are comprised of raw materials. The Company has established a program to use
interchangeable parts in its various product offerings and to modify certain of its finished goods to better match customer demands. In addition,
the Company has instituted additional marketing programs to dispose of the slower moving inventories.

The Company continually analyzes its slow-moving, excess and obsolete inventories. Based on historical and projected sales volumes and
anticipated selling prices, the Company establishes reserves. Products that are determined to be obsolete are written down to net realizable value.
If the Company does not meet its sales expectations, these reserves are increased. The Company believes reserves are adequate and inventories
are reflected at net realizable value.

Note4 Debt

On August 6, 2008, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agreement with Sovereign Business Capital
( Sovereign ), a division of Sovereign Bank ( Sovereign Agreement ), pursuant to which the Company obtained an $8,000 credit facility from
Sovereign (the Sovereign Financing ). The Sovereign Financing consists of (i) a $4,000 asset based revolving credit facility ( Revolver ) and (ii)
a $4,000 term loan facility ( Term Loan ), each of which has a three year term. The amounts which may be borrowed under the Revolver are
based on certain percentages of Eligible Receivables and Eligible Inventory, as such terms are defined in the Sovereign Agreement. The
obligations of the Company under the Sovereign Agreement are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company.

Under the Sovereign Agreement, the Revolver bears interest at a rate per annum equal to the prime lending rate announced from time to time
by Sovereign ( Primeplus 0.25% . The Term Loan bears interest at a rate per annum equal to Prime plus 0.50% .

The Revolver terminates on August 5, 2011, at which time all outstanding borrowings under the Revolver are due. The Term Loan matures
on August 5, 2011 and requires equal monthly principal payments of approximately $17,000 each, plus interest, with the remaining balance due
at maturity. The loans are subject to a prepayment penalty if satisfied in full prior to the second anniversary of the effective date of the loans.
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BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands)
(unaudited)

The Sovereign Agreement contains customary representations and warranties as well as affirmative and negative covenants, including
certain financial covenants. The Sovereign Agreement contains customary events of default, including, among others, non-payment of principal,
interest or other amounts when due.

Proceeds from the Term Loan were used to refinance the Company s credit facility with National City Business Credit, Inc. ( NCBC ) and
National City Bank (the Bank ), to pay transaction costs, to provide working capital and for other general corporate purposes. As of September
30, 2008, the Company has not drawn any funds under the Revolver.

Note 5 Discontinued Operations (Subscribers and passings in whole numbers)

The accompanying financial statements for all periods presented have been presented to reflect the accounting of discontinued operations for
the disposal of certain subsidiaries during the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007.

The Company classifies disposal of subsidiary in discontinued operations when the operations and cash flows of the subsidiary have been
eliminated from ongoing operations and when the Company will not have any significant continuing involvement in the operation of the
subsidiary after disposal. For purposes of reporting the operations of the subsidiary meeting the criteria of discontinued operations, the Company
reports net revenue, gross profit and related selling, general and administrative expenses that are specifically identifiable to the subsidiary as
discontinued operations.

On December 15, 2006, the Company and BDR entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement ("Purchase Agreement") with
DirecPath Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("DirecPath"), pursuant to which and on such date, the Company sold all of the
issued and outstanding membership interests of BDR to DirecPath.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, DirecPath paid the Company an aggregate purchase price of $3,130 in cash, resulting in a gain of
approximately $880 on the sale, after certain post-closing adjustments, including an adjustment for cash, an adjustment for working capital and
adjustments related to the number of subscribers for certain types of services, all as of the closing date and as set forth in the Purchase
Agreement. A portion of the purchase price, $463, is being held in an escrow account, and is included as part of the prepaid and other current
assets, pursuant to an Escrow Agreement dated December 15, 2006, among the Company, DirecPath and U.S. Bank National Association, to
secure the Company s indemnification obligations under the Purchase Agreement.

The Company made the decision in 2008 to cease the operations of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hybrid Networks, LLC ( Hybrid ), and
liquidate its assets. The Company expects to wind down the operations of Hybrid during the fourth quarter of 2008.

Hybrid s business activities consisted of the operation of video, high-speed data and/or telephony systems ( Systems ) at four multi-dwelling
unit communities under certain right-of-entry agreements ( ROE Agreements ). As part of the Company s on-going implementation of its
strategic plan, management has continued to evaluate the impact and long-term viability of non-core business activities, including the continued
operation of the Systems. The decision of the Board of Directors to discontinue Hybrid s operations was based upon such evaluation and the
current cash flow and operating losses of Hybrid.

Based on this decision, the Company recognized net loss on disposal of approximately $290 related to the Hybrid fixed assets, which
includes the ROE Agreements and the equipment necessary to operate the Systems, substantially all of which is installed at the applicable
property locations.

BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands)
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(unaudited)

The Company reflected the disposal of Hybrid and the results of its operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and
2007, as a discontinued operation. Components of the loss from discontinued operations are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net sales $23 $35 $81 $116
Cost of goods sold 33 21 71 103
Gross profit (loss) (10) 14 10 13
General and administrative (8) 45 48 210
Net loss $(18) $(31) $(38) $(197)

Note 6 Related Party Transactions

On January 1, 1995, the Company entered into a consulting and non-competition agreement with James H. Williams who was a director of
the Company until May 24, 2006 and who was also the largest stockholder until November 14, 2006. Under the agreement, Mr. Williams
provides consulting services on various operational and financial issues and is currently paid at an annual rate of $186 but in no event is such
annual rate permitted to exceed $200. Mr. Williams also agreed to keep all Company information confidential and not to compete directly or
indirectly with the Company for the term of the agreement and for a period of two years thereafter. The initial term of this agreement expired on
December 31, 2004 and automatically renews thereafter for successive one-year terms (subject to termination at the end of the initial term or any
renewal term on at least 90 days notice). This agreement automatically renewed for a one-year extension until December 31, 2008.

As of September 30, 2008 the Chief Executive Officer was indebted to the Company in the amount of $143, for which no interest has been
charged. This indebtedness arose from a series of cash advances, the latest of which was advanced in February 2002 and is included in other
assets at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

In December 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to provide manufacturing, research and development and product support to
Buffalo City Center Leasing, LLC ( Buffalo City ) for an electronic on-board recorder that Buffalo City is producing for Turnpike Global
Technologies, LLC. The Company has received $326 and $1,051 in revenues from this Agreement during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2008, respectively. A director of the Company is also the managing member and a vice president of Buffalo City and may be
deemed to control the entity which owns fifty percent (50%) of the membership interests of Buffalo City.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Quarterly Report contains forward-looking statements relating to such matters as anticipated
financial performance, business prospects, technological developments, new products, research and development activities and similar matters.
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In order to comply with the terms
of the safe harbor, the Company notes that a variety of factors could cause the Company s actual results and experience to differ materially from
the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the Company s forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertainties that may affect
the operation, performance, development and results of the Company s business include, but are not limited to, those matters discussed herein in
the section entitled Item 2 - Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The words believe , expect ,

anticipate , project and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these

forward-looking statements, which reflect management s analysis only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly
revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof. Readers should carefully review the
risk factors described in other documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including without
limitation, the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (See Item 1  Business; Item 1A Risk Factors;
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Item 3 Legal Proceedings and Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations).

General

The Company is principally a designer, manufacturer and supplier of a comprehensive line of electronics and systems equipment, primarily
for the cable television industry (both franchise and private cable). Over the past few years, the Company has also introduced equipment and
innovative solutions for the high-speed transmission of data and the provision of telephony services in multiple dwelling unit applications. The
Company s products are used to acquire, distribute and protect the broad range of communications signals carried on fiber optic, twisted pair,
coaxial cable and wireless distribution systems. These products are sold to customers providing an array of communications services, including
television, high-speed data (Internet) and telephony, to single family dwellings, multiple dwelling units ( MDUs ), the lodging industry and
institutions such as hospitals, prisons, schools and marinas. The Company s principal customers are cable system operators (both franchise and
private cable), as well as contractors that design, package, install and in most instances operate, upgrade and maintain the systems they build,
including institutional and lodging/hospitality operators.

A key component of the Company s strategy is to leverage its reputation across a broad product line, offering one-stop shop convenience to
private cable and franchise cable system operators and delivering products having a high performance-to-cost ratio. The Company continues to
expand its core product lines (headend and distribution), to maintain its ability to provide all of the electronic equipment necessary to build small
cable systems and much of the equipment needed in larger systems for the most efficient operation and highest profitability in high density
applications. The Company has also divested its interests in certain non-core businesses as part of its strategy to focus on the efficient operation
of its core businesses.

Over the past several years, the Company expanded beyond its core business by acquiring private cable television systems (BDR Broadband,
LLC and Hybrid Networks, LLC). However, as part of its strategy to focus on its core business, the Company sold its interests in BDR
Broadband, LLC during 2006, and the Company decided to cease the operations of Hybrid Networks, LLC during 2008. These dispositions are
described in more detail below, along with other recent transactions affecting the Company.

On December 15, 2006, the Company completed the divesture of its wholly-owned subsidiary, BDR Broadband, LLC ( BDR ), through the
sale of all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of BDR to DirecPath Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
("DirecPath"), which is a joint venture between Hicks Holdings LL.C and The DIRECTV Group, Inc. This sale took place pursuant to a
Membership Interest Purchase Agreement ("Purchase Agreement"). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, DirecPath paid the Company an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $3,130,000 in cash, resulting in a gain of approximately $880,000 on the sale, after certain
post-closing adjustments. A portion of the purchase price, $465,000, is being held in an escrow account, and is included as part of the prepaid
and other current assets, pursuant to an Escrow Agreement dated December 15, 2006, among the Company, DirecPath and U.S. Bank National
Association, to secure the Company s indemnification obligations under the Purchase Agreement.

10

In addition, in connection with the divestiture transaction, on December 15, 2006, the Company entered into a Purchase and Supply
Agreement with DirecPath, LLC ("DPLLC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of DirecPath, pursuant to which DPLLC will purchase $1,630,000 of
products from the Company, subject to certain adjustments, over a period of three years. DPLLC purchased $404,000 of equipment from the
Company in 2007 and $48,000 of equipment during the first nine months of 2008. It is also anticipated that the Company will provide DirecPath
with certain systems engineering and technical services.

The Company made the decision in 2008 to cease the operations of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hybrid Networks, LLC ( Hybrid ), and
liquidate its assets. The Company expects to wind down the operations of Hybrid during the fourth quarter of 2008.

Hybrid s business activities consist of the operation of video, high-speed data and/or telephony systems ( Systems ) at four multi-dwelling unit
communities under certain right-of-entry agreements ( ROE Agreements ). As part of the Company s on-going implementation of its strategic
plan, management has continued to evaluate the impact and long-term viability of non-core business activities, including the continued operation
of the Systems. The decision of the Board of Directors to discontinue Hybrid s operations was based upon such evaluation and the current cash
flow and operating losses of Hybrid. Hybrid had revenues of $148,000 and $177,000 and net losses of $249,000 and $368,000 in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The results of operations of Hybrid are reflected as discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations included in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Based on this decision, the Company recognized net loss on disposal of approximately $290,000 related to the Hybrid fixed assets, which
includes the ROE Agreements and the equipment necessary to operate the Systems, substantially all of which is installed at the applicable
property locations.

10
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One of the Company s recent initiatives is to manufacture products in the People s Republic of China ( PRC ) in order to reduce the Company s

manufacturing costs and allow a more aggressive marketing program in the private cable market. The Company s manufacturing initiative in the

PRC entails a combination of contract manufacturing agreements and purchasing agreements with key PRC manufacturers that can most fully

meet the Company s needs. In early 2007, the Company entered into a manufacturing agreement with a core contract manufacturer in the PRC

that will govern its production of certain of the Company s high volume and complex products upon the receipt of purchase orders from the
Company. This ongoing transition is being implemented in phases over the next several years with the goal that it will ultimately relate to
products representing a significant portion of the Company s net sales. The first products were produced in the PRC during the fourth quarter of
2007.

On February 27, 2006 (the Effective Date ), the Company entered into a series of agreements related to its MegaPottie of high-speed data
communications products. As a result of these agreements, the Company expanded its distribution territory, favorably amended certain pricing
and volume provisions and extended by 10 years the term of the distribution agreement for its MegaPortéd product line. These agreements also
require the Company to guaranty payment due by Shenzhen Junao Technology Company Ltd. ( Shenzhen ) to Octalica, Ltd. ( Octalica ), in
connection with Shenzhen s purchase of T.M.T.-Third Millennium Technology Limited ( TMT ) from Octalica. In exchange for this guaranty,
MegaPort Technology, LLC ( MegaPort ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained an assignable option (the Option ) to acquire
substantially all of the assets and assume certain liabilities of TMT on substantially the same terms as the acquisition of TMT by Shenzhen from
Octalica. The purchase price for TMT and, therefore, the amount and payment terms guaranteed by the Company is the sum of $383,150 plus an
earn-out. The earn-out will not exceed 4.5% of the net revenues derived from the sale of certain products during a period of 36 months
commencing after the sale of certain specified quantities of TMT inventory following the Effective Date. The cash portion of the purchase price
was payable (i) $22,100 on the 120th day following the Effective Date, (ii) $22,100 on the last day of the twenty-fourth month following the
Effective Date, and (iii) $338,950 commencing upon the later of (A) the second anniversary of the Effective Date and (B) the date after which
certain volume sales targets for each of the MegaPortdproducts have been met, and then only as and to the extent that revenues are derived from
sales of such products. As of the date of the filing of this report, none of the volume sales targets for these MegaPort products have been met
and, accordingly, no further purchase price payments have been made. In February 2007, MegaPort sent notice to TMT and Shenzhen of its
election to exercise the Option to acquire substantially all of the assets of TMT. Shenzhen has not responded to MegaPort s notice of exercise of
the Option. In 2007, MegaPort engaged legal representation in Israel to explore its options in connection with enforcement of its contractual
rights; however, MegaPort has determined not to take any specific action in this regard at the present time. If MegaPort ultimately consummates
the acquisition, MegaPort, or its assignee, will pay Shenzhen, in the same manner and at the same times, cash payments equal to the purchase
price payments due from Shenzhen to Octalica and will assume certain liabilities of TMT.

11

In December 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to provide manufacturing, research and development and product support to
Buffalo City Center Leasing, LLC ( Buffalo City ) for an electronic on-board recorder that Buffalo City is producing for Turnpike Global
Technologies, LLC. The three-year agreement is anticipated to provide up to $4,000,000 in revenue to the Company. A director of the Company
is also the managing member and a vice president of Buffalo City and may be deemed to control the entity which owns fifty percent (50%) of
the membership interests of Buffalo City.

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) mandated that all analog broadcasts are to cease by February 17, 2009. In anticipation of
this analog shut down, the FCC also granted second licenses to all broadcasters to begin simulcasting digital signals. As a result, the Company
expects to see a continuing shift in product mix from analog products to digital products.

Results of Operations

Third three months of 2008 Compared with third three months of 2007

Net Sales. Net sales increased $498,000, or 5.4%, to $9,709,000 in the third three months of 2008 from $9,211,000 in the third three months
of 2007. The increase in sales is primarily attributed to an increase in sales of digital products and a contract manufactured product, offset by a
decrease in sales of analog headend products. Digital product sales were $3,304,000 and $1,544,000, contract manufactured product sales were
$326,000 and zero and analog headend product sales were $3,390,000 and $4,691,000 in the third three months of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold increased to $6,810,000 for the third three months of 2008 from $5,737,000 for the third three
months of 2007 and increased as a percentage of sales to 70.1% from 62.3% . The increase in percentage of sales was primarily attributed to an
increase in the provision for inventory reserves of $472,000 in tht be amended or eliminated at any time in the future.

We have not elected to opt out of the affiliated transaction provision of the Florida Act. The affiliated transaction provision prohibits a
publicly-held Florida corporation from engaging in a broad range of business combinations or other extraordinary corporate transactions with an

11
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interested shareholder unless (a) the transaction is approved by a majority of disinterested directors before the person becomes an interested
shareholder, (b) the interested shareholder has owned at least 80% of the corporation s outstanding voting shares for at least five years, or (c) the
transaction is approved by the holders of two-thirds of the corporation s voting shares other than those owned by the interested shareholder. An
interested shareholder is defined as a person who together with affiliates and associates beneficially owns more than 10% of the corporation s
outstanding voting shares.

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

Certain other provisions of our articles of incorporation and by-laws may be deemed to have anti-takeover effects. Unless prohibited by its
articles of incorporation, a Florida corporation s shareholders may act by written consent of a majority of the shareholders without a meeting. Our
articles of incorporation prohibit such shareholder action by consent without a meeting. Our by-laws permit a shareholder to nominate persons
for election as directors provided that such nomination is accompanied by a petition signed by at least 100 record holders of our common stock
and such holders own an aggregate of at least one percent of the outstanding shares entitles to vote in the election of directors.

RESTRICTIONS ON OWNERSHIP OF CAPITAL STOCK

For us to qualify as a REIT under the federal income tax laws, we must satisfy restrictions on the ownership of shares of our capital stock.
See Federal Income Tax Consequences of Our Status as a REIT Requirements for Qualification. Because our board of directors believes it is
essential for us to continue to qualify as a REIT, our articles of incorporation limit the acquisition of shares of our capital stock (the Ownership
Limitation ).

The Ownership Limitation provides that, subject to certain exceptions specified in our articles of incorporation, no shareholder may own, or
be deemed to own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the federal income tax laws (i) more than 9.8% of the outstanding shares of common
stock, or (ii) more than 9.8% of the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock. The board of directors may call for redemption any shares owned by a
person in excess of the Ownership Limitation. Additionally, if the board of directors determines in good faith that direct or indirect ownership of
shares would jeopardize our status as a REIT or cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT, the board of directors may call from any stockholder a
number of shares sufficient in the opinion of the board of directors to maintain or to bring the direct or indirect ownership of shares into
conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT. We shall purchase any share called for redemption (i) in the case of common
stock, assuming our common stock continues to be listed on a national securities exchange, at the average daily per share composite closing
sales price during the twenty trading day period ending on the business day prior to the redemption and (ii) in the case of Series A Preferred
Stock, at a price of $25.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends,

17
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without interest, provided that a holder of Series A Preferred Stock called for redemption after a dividend record date, but before the dividend
payment date, will not be entitled to receive the related the dividend. The holder of any shares called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to
distributions, voting rights, and other benefits with respect to such shares, excepting the right to payment of the redemption price. Any transfer
of shares that would prevent our continued REIT qualification shall be void ab initio and any purported acquisition of shares resulting in
disqualification of our REIT status will be null and void.

The Ownership Limitation will not be automatically removed even if the REIT provisions of the federal income tax laws are changed to no
longer contain any ownership concentration limitation or if the ownership concentration limitation is increased. Any change in the Ownership
Limitation would require an amendment to our articles of incorporation. In addition to preserving our status as a REIT, the Ownership
Limitation may have the effect of precluding an acquisition of control without the approval of our board of directors. All certificates representing
shares of capital stock bear a legend referring to the restrictions described above.

Upon our demand, each shareholder is required to disclose to us in writing such information with respect to the direct or indirect ownership
of shares as the board of directors deems necessary to comply with the provisions of the federal income tax laws applicable to a REIT or to
comply with the requirements of any taxing authority or governmental agency.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

The following description, together with the additional information we include in any applicable prospectus supplements, summarizes the
material terms and provisions of the debt securities that we may offer under this prospectus. As of the date of this prospectus, we did not have
any debt securities outstanding. While the terms we have summarized below will apply generally to any future debt securities we may offer, we
will describe the particular terms of any debt securities that we may offer in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement. The terms of
any debt securities we offer under that prospectus supplement may differ from the terms we describe below.

The debt securities will be our direct unsecured general obligations and may include debentures, notes, bonds and/or other evidences of
indebtedness. The debt securities will be either senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities. The debt securities will be issued under one
or more separate indentures. Senior debt securities will be issued under a senior indenture, and subordinated debt securities will be issued under
a subordinated indenture. We use the term indentures to refer to both the senior indenture and the subordinated indenture. A form of each of the
senior indenture and the subordinated indenture is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. The
indentures will be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act. We use the term debenture trustee to refer to either the senior trustee or the
subordinated trustee, as applicable.

The following summaries of material provisions of the debt securities and indentures are subject to, and qualified in their entirety by
reference to, all the provisions of the indenture applicable to a particular series of debt securities.

General

We will describe in each prospectus supplement the following terms relating to a series of debt securities:

the title or designation;
any limit on the principal amount that may be issued;
whether or not we will issue the series of debt securities in global form, the terms and who the depository will be;

the maturity date;
18
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the annual interest rate, which may be fixed or variable, or the method for determining the rate and the date interest will begin to accrue,
the dates interest will be payable and the regular record dates for interest payment dates or the method for determining such dates;

whether or not the debt securities will be secured or unsecured, and the terms of any secured debt;
the terms of the subordination of any series of subordinated debt;

the place where payments will be payable;

our right, if any, to defer payment of interest and the maximum length of any such deferral period;

the date, if any, after which, and the price at which, we may, at our option, redeem the series of debt securities pursuant to any optional
redemption provisions;

the date, if any, on which, and the price at which we are obligated, pursuant to any mandatory sinking fund provisions or otherwise, to
redeem, or at the holder s option to purchase, the series of debt securities;

whether the indenture will restrict our ability to pay dividends, or will require us to maintain any asset ratios or reserves;
whether we will be restricted from incurring any additional indebtedness;
a discussion of any material or special United States federal income tax considerations applicable to the debt securities;

the denominations in which we will issue the series of debt securities, if other than denominations of $1,000 and any integral multiple
thereof; and

any other specific terms, preferences, rights or limitations of, or restrictions on, the debt securities.

Conversion or Exchange Rights

We will set forth in the prospectus supplement the terms on which a series of debt securities may be convertible into or exchangeable for

common stock or other securities of ours. We will include provisions as to whether conversion or exchange is mandatory, at the option of the
holder or at our option. We may include provisions pursuant to which the number of shares of common stock or other securities of ours that the
holders of the series of debt securities receive would be subject to adjustment.

Consolidation, Merger or Sale

The indentures will not contain any covenant which restricts our ability to merge or consolidate, or sell, convey, transfer or otherwise

dispose of all or substantially all of our assets. However, any successor to or acquirer of such assets must assume all of our obligations under the
indentures or the debt securities, as appropriate.

Events of Default Under the Indenture

The following will be events of default under the indentures with respect to any series of debt securities that we may issue:

if we fail to pay interest when due and our failure continues for a number of days to be stated in the indenture and the time for payment has
not been extended or deferred;

if we fail to pay the principal, or premium, if any, when due and the time for payment has not been extended or delayed;

if we fail to observe or perform any other covenant contained in the debt securities or the indentures, other than a covenant specifically
relating to another series of debt securities, and our failure continues for a number of days to be stated in the indenture after we receive
notice from the

19

14



Edgar Filing: BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES INC - Form 10-Q

15



Edgar Filing: BLONDER TONGUE LABORATORIES INC - Form 10-Q

debenture trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of the applicable series; and

if specified events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization occur as to us.

If an event of default with respect to debt securities of any series occurs and is continuing, the debenture trustee or the holders of at least
25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series, by notice to us in writing, and to the debenture trustee if
notice is given by such holders, may declare the unpaid principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest, if any, due and payable immediately.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of an affected series may waive any default or event of
default with respect to the series and its consequences, except defaults or events of default regarding payment of principal, premium, if any, or
interest, unless we have cured the default or event of default in accordance with the indenture. Any waiver shall cure the default or event of
default.

Subject to the terms of the indentures, if an event of default under an indenture shall occur and be continuing, the debenture trustee will be
under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under such indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders of the applicable
series of debt securities, unless such holders have offered the debenture trustee reasonable indemnity. The holders of a majority in principal
amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for
any remedy available to the debenture trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the debenture trustee, with respect to the debt
securities of that series, provided that:

the direction given by the holder is not in conflict with any law or the applicable indenture; and

subject to its duties under the Trust Indenture Act, the debenture trustee need not take any action that might involve it in personal liability
or might be unduly prejudicial to the holders not involved in the proceeding.

A holder of the debt securities of any series will only have the right to institute a proceeding under the indentures or to appoint a receiver or
trustee, or to seek other remedies if:

the holder has given written notice to the debenture trustee of a continuing event of default with respect to that series;

the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series have made written request, and
such holders have offered reasonable indemnity to the debenture trustee to institute the proceeding as trustee; and

the debenture trustee does not institute the proceeding, and does not receive from the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount

of the outstanding debt securities of that series other conflicting directions within 60 days after the notice, request and offer.

These limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by a holder of debt securities if we default in the payment of the principal, premium, if
any, or interest on, the debt securities.

We will periodically file statements with the debenture trustee regarding our compliance with specified covenants in the indentures.

20
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Modification of Indenture; Waiver

We and the debenture trustee may change an indenture without the consent of any holders with respect to specific matters, including:

to fix any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in the indenture; and

to change anything that does not materially adversely affect the interests of any holder of debt securities of any series.

In addition, under the indentures, the rights of holders of a series of debt securities may be changed by us and the debenture trustee with the
written consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each series that is
affected. However, we and the debenture trustee may only make the following changes with the consent of each holder of any outstanding debt
securities affected:

extending the fixed maturity of the series of debt securities;

reducing the principal amount, reducing the rate of or extending the time of payment of interest, or any premium payable upon the
redemption of any debt securities; or

reducing the percentage of debt securities, the holders of which are required to consent to any amendment.
Discharge

Each indenture provides that we can elect to be discharged from our obligations with respect to one or more series of debt securities, except
for obligations to:

register the transfer or exchange of debt securities of the series;
replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities of the series;
maintain paying agencies;

hold monies for payment in trust;

compensate and indemnify the debenture trustee; and

appoint any successor debenture trustee.

In order to exercise our rights to be discharged, we must deposit with the trustee money or government obligations sufficient to pay all the
principal of, any premium, if any, and interest on, the debt securities of the series on the dates payments are due.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

We will issue the debt securities of each series only in fully registered form without coupons and, unless we otherwise specify in the
applicable prospectus supplement, in denominations of $1,000 and any integral multiple thereof. The indentures provide that we may issue debt
securities of a series in temporary or permanent global form and as book-entry securities that will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The
Depository Trust Company or another depository named by us and identified in a prospectus supplement with respect to that series. See Legal
Ownership of Securities for a further description of the terms relating to any book-entry securities.

Subject to the terms of the indentures and the limitations applicable to global securities described in the applicable prospectus supplement,
the holder of the debt securities, at its option, of any series can exchange the debt securities for other debt securities of the same series, in any
authorized denomination and of like tenor and aggregate principal amount.

Subject to the terms of the indentures and the limitations applicable to global securities set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement,
holders of the debt securities may present the debt securities for
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exchange or for registration of transfer, duly endorsed or with the form of transfer endorsed thereon duly executed if so required by us or the
security registrar, at the office of the security registrar or at the office of any transfer agent designated by us for this purpose. Unless otherwise
provided in the debt securities that the holder presents for transfer or exchange, we will make no service charge for any registration of transfer or
exchange, but we may require payment of any taxes or other governmental charges.

We will name in the applicable prospectus supplement the security registrar, and any transfer agent in addition to the security registrar, that
we initially designate for any debt securities. We may at any time designate additional transfer agents or rescind the designation of any transfer
agent or approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts, except that we will be required to maintain a transfer agent in each
place of payment for the debt securities of each series.

If we elect to redeem the debt securities of any series, we will not be required to:

issue, register the transfer of, or exchange any debt securities of that series during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days
before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of any debt securities that may be selected for redemption and ending at the close of
business on the day of the mailing; or

register the transfer of or exchange any debt securities so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of
any debt securities we are redeeming in part.
Information Concerning the Debenture Trustee

The debenture trustee, other than during the occurrence and continuance of an event of default under an indenture, undertakes to perform
only those duties as are specifically set forth in the applicable indenture. Upon an event of default under an indenture, the debenture trustee must
use the same degree of care as a prudent person would exercise or use in the conduct of his or her own affairs. Subject to this provision, the
debenture trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers given it by the indentures at the request of any holder of debt securities
unless it is offered reasonable security and indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities that it might incur.

Payment and Paying Agents

Unless we otherwise indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will make payment of the interest on any debt securities on any
interest payment date to the person in whose name the debt securities, or one or more predecessor securities, are registered at the close of
business on the regular record date for the interest.

We will pay principal of and any premium and interest on the debt securities of a particular series at the office of the paying agents
designated by us, except, that unless we otherwise indicate in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will make interest payments by check
which we will mail to the holder. Unless we otherwise indicate in a prospectus supplement, we will designate the corporate trust office of the
debenture trustee in the City of New York as our sole paying agent for payments with respect to debt securities of each series. We will name in
the applicable prospectus supplement any other paying agents that we initially designate for the debt securities of a particular series. We will
maintain a paying agent in each place of payment for the debt securities of a particular series.

All money we pay to a paying agent or the debenture trustee for the payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on any debt
securities which remains unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, premium or interest has become due and payable will be repaid
to us, and the holder of the security thereafter may look only to us for payment thereof.

Governing Law

The indentures and the debt securities will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, except to the
extent that the Trust Indenture Act is applicable.
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Subordination of Subordinated Notes

The subordinated notes will be unsecured and will be subordinate and junior in priority of payment to certain of our other indebtedness to
the extent described in a prospectus supplement. The subordinated indenture does not limit the amount of subordinated notes which we may
issue. It also does not limit us from issuing any other secured or unsecured debt.

LEGAL OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIES

We can issue securities in registered form or in the form of one or more global securities. We describe global securities in greater detail
below. We refer to those persons who have securities registered in their own names on the books that we or any applicable trustee maintain for
this purpose as the holders of those securities. These persons are the legal holders of the securities. We refer to those persons who, indirectly
through others, own beneficial interests in securities that are not registered in their own names, as indirect holders of those securities. As we
discuss below, indirect holders are not legal holders, and investors in securities issued in book-entry form or in street name will be indirect
holders.

Book-Entry Holders

We may issue securities in book-entry form only, as we will specify in the applicable prospectus supplement. This means securities may be
represented by one or more global securities registered in the name of a financial institution that holds them as depositary on behalf of other
financial institutions that participate in the depositary s book-entry system. These participating institutions, which are referred to as participants,
in turn, hold beneficial interests in the securities on behalf of themselves or their customers.

Only the person in whose name a security is registered is recognized as the holder of that security. Securities issued in global form will be
registered in the name of the depositary or its participants. Consequently, for securities issued in global form, we will recognize only the
depositary as the holder of the securities, and we will make all payments on the securities to the depositary. The depositary passes along the
payments it receives to its participants, which in turn pass the payments along to their customers who are the beneficial owners. The depositary
and its participants do so under agreements they have made with one another or with their customers; they are not obligated to do so under the
terms of the securities.

As a result, investors in a book-entry security will not own securities directly. Instead, they will own beneficial interests in a global security,
through a bank, broker or other financial institution that participates in the depositary s book-entry system or holds an interest through a
participant. As long as the securities are issued in global form, investors will be indirect holders, and not holders, of the securities.

Street Name Holders

We may terminate a global security or issue securities in non-global form. In these cases, investors may choose to hold their securities in
their own names or in  street name. Securities held by an investor in street name would be registered in the name of a bank, broker or other
financial institution that the investor chooses, and the investor would hold only a beneficial interest in those securities through an account he or
she maintains at that institution.

For securities held in street name, we will recognize only the intermediary banks, brokers and other financial institutions in whose names
the securities are registered as the holders of those securities, and we will make all payments on those securities to them. These institutions pass
along the payments they receive to their customers who are the beneficial owners, but only because they agree to do so in their customer
agreements or because they are legally required to do so. Investors who hold securities in street name will be indirect holders, not holders, of
those securities.
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Legal Holders

Our obligations, as well as the obligations of any applicable trustee and of any third parties employed by us or a trustee, run only to the legal
holders of the securities. We do not have obligations to investors who hold beneficial interests in global securities, in street name or by any other
indirect means. This will be the case whether an investor chooses to be an indirect holder of a security or has no choice because we are issuing
the securities only in global form.

For example, once we make a payment or give a notice to the holder, we have no further responsibility for the payment or notice even if that
holder is required, under agreements with depositary participants or customers or by law, to pass it along to the indirect holders but does not do
so. Similarly, we may want to obtain the approval of the holders to amend an indenture, to relieve us of the consequences of a default or of our
obligation to comply with a particular provision of the indenture or for other purposes. In such an event, we would seek approval only from the
holders, and not the indirect holders, of the securities. Whether and how the holders contact the indirect holders is up to the holders.

Special Considerations for Indirect Holders

If you hold securities through a bank, broker or other financial institution, either in book-entry form or in street name, you should check
with your own institution to find out:

how it handles securities payments and notices;
whether it imposes fees or charges;
how it would handle a request for the holders consent, if ever required;

whether and how you can instruct it to send you securities registered in your own name so you can be a holder, if that is permitted in the
future;

how it would exercise rights under the securities if there were a default or other event triggering the need for holders to act to protect their
interests; and

if the securities are in book-entry form, how the depositary s rules and procedures will affect these matters.
Global Securities

A global security is a security held by a depositary which represents one or any other number of individual securities. Generally, all
securities represented by the same global securities will have the same terms.

Each security issued in book-entry form will be represented by a global security that we deposit with and register in the name of a financial
institution or its nominee that we select. The financial institution that we select for this purpose is called the depositary. Unless we specify
otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, known as DTC, will be the
depositary for all securities issued in book-entry form.

A global security may not be transferred to or registered in the name of anyone other than the depositary, its nominee or a successor
depositary, unless special termination situations arise. We describe those situations below under  Special Situations When a Global Security Will
Be Terminated. As a result of these arrangements, the depositary, or its nominee, will be the sole registered owner and holder of all securities
represented by a global security, and investors will be permitted to own only beneficial interests in a global security. Beneficial interests must be
held by means of an account with a broker, bank or other financial institution that in turn has an account with the depositary or with another
institution that does. Thus, an investor whose security is represented by a global security will not be a holder of the security, but only an indirect
holder of a beneficial interest in the global security.
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If the prospectus supplement for a particular security indicates that the security will be issued in global form only, then the security will be

represented by a global security at all times unless and until the global security is terminated. If termination occurs, we may issue the securities
through another book-entry clearing system or decide that the securities may no longer be held through any book-entry clearing system.

Special Considerations for Global Securities

As an indirect holder, an investor s rights relating to a global security will be governed by the account rules of the investor s financial

institution and of the depositary, as well as general laws relating to securities transfers. We do not recognize an indirect holder as a holder of
securities and instead deal only with the depositary that holds the global security.

If securities are issued only in the form of a global security, an investor should be aware of the following:

An investor cannot cause the securities to be registered in his or her name, and cannot obtain non-global certificates for his or her interest
in the securities, except in the special situations we describe below;

An investor will be an indirect holder and must look to his or her own bank or broker for payments on the securities and protection of his
or her legal rights relating to the securities, as described herein;

An investor may not be able to sell interests in the securities to some insurance companies and to other institutions that are required by law
to own their securities in non-book-entry form;

An investor may not be able to pledge his or her interest in a global security in circumstances where certificates representing the securities
must be delivered to the lender or other beneficiary of the pledge in order for the pledge to be effective;

The depositary s policies, which may change from time to time, will govern payments, transfers, exchanges and other matters relating to an
investor s interest in a global security. We and any applicable trustee have no responsibility for any aspect of the depositary s actions or for
its records of ownership interests in a global security. We and the trustee also do not supervise the depositary in any way;

The depositary may, and we understand that DTC will, require that those who purchase and sell interests in a global security within its
book-entry system use immediately available funds, and your broker or bank may require you to do so as well; and

Financial institutions that participate in the depositary s book-entry system, and through which an investor holds its interest in a global
security, may also have their own policies affecting payments, notices and other matters relating to the securities. There may be more than
one financial intermediary in the chain of ownership for an investor. We do not monitor and are not responsible for the actions of any of
those intermediaries.

Special Situations When a Global Security Will be Terminated

In a few special situations described below, the global security will terminate and interests in it will be exchanged for physical certificates

representing those interests. After that exchange, the choice of whether to hold securities directly or in street name will be up to the investor.
Investors must consult their own banks or brokers to find out how to have their interests in securities transferred to their own name, so that they
will be direct holders. We have described the rights of holders and street name investors above.
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The global security will terminate when the following special situations occur:

if the depositary notifies us that it is unwilling, unable or no longer qualified to continue as depositary for that global security and we do
not appoint another institution to act as depositary within 90 days;

if we notify any applicable trustee that we wish to terminate that global security; or

if an event of default has occurred with regard to securities represented by that global security and has not been cured or waived.

The prospectus supplement may also list additional situations for terminating a global security that would apply only to the particular series
of securities covered by the prospectus supplement. When a global security terminates, the depositary, and not we or any applicable trustee, is
responsible for deciding the names of the institutions that will be the initial direct holders.

FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF OUR STATUS AS A REIT

This section summarizes the material federal income tax issues that you, as a holder of our securities, may consider relevant. Because this
section is a summary, it does not address all of the tax issues that may be important to you. Hunton & Williams LLP has acted as our special tax
counsel, has reviewed this summary, and is of the opinion that the discussion contained herein fairly summarizes the federal income tax
consequences that are likely to be material to a holder of our securities. The discussion does not address all aspects of taxation that may be
relevant to particular holder of our securities in light of their personal investment or tax circumstances, or to certain types of holders of our
securities that are subject to special treatment under the federal income tax laws, such as insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations,
financial institutions or broker-dealers, and non-U.S. individuals and foreign corporations.

The statements in this section and the opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP are based on the current federal income tax laws governing
qualification as a REIT. We cannot assure you that new laws, interpretations of law or court decisions, any of which may take effect
retroactively, will not cause any statement in this section to be inaccurate.

We urge you to consult your own tax advisor regarding the specific tax consequences to you of ownership of our securities and of
our taxation as a REIT. Specifically, you should consult your own tax advisor regarding the state, local, foreign, and other tax
consequences of such ownership and taxation, and regarding potential changes in applicable tax laws.

Taxation of Our Company

We elected to be taxed as a REIT under the federal income tax laws commencing with our short taxable year ended December 31, 1988. We
believe that, commencing with such short taxable year, we have been organized and have operated in such a manner so as to qualify for taxation
as a REIT under the federal income tax laws, and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no assurance can be given that we will
operate in a manner so as to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT. This section discusses the laws governing the federal income tax treatment of
a REIT. These laws are highly technical and complex.

In the opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP, we qualified to be taxed as a REIT for our taxable years ended December 31, 2000 through
2003, and our organization and current proposed method of operation will enable us to continue to qualify as a REIT for our taxable year ending
December 31, 2004 and in the future. Investors should be aware that Hunton & Williams LLP s opinion is based upon customary assumptions, is
conditioned upon certain representations made by us as to factual matters, including representations regarding the nature of our properties and
the conduct of our business, and is not binding upon the Internal Revenue Service or any court. In addition, Hunton & Williams LLP s opinion is
based on existing federal income tax law governing qualification as a REIT, which is subject to change either prospectively or retroactively.
Moreover, our qualification and taxation as a REIT depend upon our ability
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to meet on a continuing basis, through actual annual operating results, certain qualification tests set forth in the federal tax laws. Those
qualification tests involve the percentage of income that we earn from specified sources, the percentage of our assets that falls within specified
categories, the diversity of our stock ownership, and the percentage of our earnings that we distribute. Hunton & Williams LLP will not review
our compliance with those tests on a continuing basis. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that the actual results of our operations for any
particular taxable year will satisfy such requirements. Our independent accountants monitor compliance with these qualification tests on a
quarterly basis. For a discussion of the tax consequences of our failure to qualify as a REIT, see  Failure to Qualify.

If we qualify as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on the taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders.
The benefit of that tax treatment is that it avoids the double taxation, or taxation at both the corporate and stockholder levels, that generally
results from owning stock in a corporation. However, we will be subject to federal tax in the following circumstances:

We will pay federal income tax on taxable income, including net capital gain, that we do not distribute to stockholders during, or within a
specified time period after, the calendar year in which the income is earned.

We may be subject to the alternative minimum tax on any items of tax preference that we do not distribute or allocate to stockholders.
We will pay income tax at the highest corporate rate on:

net income from the sale or other disposition of property acquired through foreclosure ( foreclosure property ) that we hold primarily
for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business, and

other non-qualifying income from foreclosure property.

We will pay a 100% tax on net income from sales or other dispositions of property, other than foreclosure property, that we hold primarily
for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business.

If we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income test or the 95% gross income test, as described below under Requirements for
Qualification Income Tests, and nonetheless continue to qualify as a REIT because we meet other requirements, we will pay a 100% tax
on:

the gross income attributable to the greater of (i) the amount by which we fail the 75% gross income test and (ii) the amount by which
90% of our gross income exceeds the amount of income qualifying under the 95% gross income test; multiplied, in each case, by

a fraction intended to reflect our profitability.
If we fail to distribute during a calendar year at least the sum of:
85% of our REIT ordinary income for the year;
95% of our REIT capital gain net income for the year; and
any undistributed taxable income from earlier periods,
we will pay a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the excess of the required distribution over the amount we actually distributed.

We may elect to retain and pay income tax on our net long-term capital gain. In that case, a U.S. stockholder would be taxed on its
proportionate share of our undistributed long-term capital gain (to the extent that we make a timely designation of such gain to the
stockholder) and would receive a credit or refund for its proportionate share of the tax we paid.

We will be subject to a 100% excise tax on transactions with a taxable REIT subsidiary that are not conducted on an arm s-length basis.
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If we acquire any asset from a C corporation, or a corporation that generally is subject to full corporate-level tax, in a merger or other
transaction in which we acquire a basis in the asset that is determined by reference either to the C corporation s basis in the asset or to
another asset, we will pay tax at the highest regular corporate rate applicable if we recognize gain on the sale or disposition of the asset
during the 10-year period after we acquire the asset. The amount of gain on which we will pay tax is the lesser of:

the amount of gain that we recognize at the time of the sale or disposition; and

the amount of gain that we would have recognized if we had sold the asset at the time we acquired it.
Requirements for Qualification

A REIT is a corporation, trust or association that meets each of the following requirements:

1. Itis managed by one or more trustees or directors;

2. Its beneficial ownership is evidenced by transferable shares, or by transferable certificates of beneficial interest;

3. It would be taxable as a domestic corporation, but for the REIT provisions of the federal income tax laws;

4. Itis neither a financial institution nor an insurance company subject to special provisions of the federal income tax laws;
5. Atleast 100 persons are beneficial owners of its shares or ownership certificates;

6. Not more than 50% in value of its outstanding shares or ownership certificates is owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer
individuals, which the federal income tax laws define to include certain entities, during the last half of any taxable year;

7. TItelects to be a REIT, or has made such election for a previous taxable year, and satisfies all relevant filing and other administrative
requirements established by the Internal Revenue Service that must be met to elect and maintain REIT status; and

8. It meets certain other qualification tests, described below, regarding the nature of its income and assets.

We must meet requirements 1 through 4 during our entire taxable year and must meet requirement 5 during at least 335 days of a taxable
year of 12 months, or during a proportionate part of a taxable year of less than 12 months. If we comply with all the requirements for
ascertaining the ownership of our outstanding shares in a taxable year and have no reason to know that we violated requirement 6, we will be
deemed to have satisfied requirement 6 for that taxable year. For purposes of determining share ownership under requirement 6, an individual
generally includes a supplemental unemployment compensation benefits plan, a private foundation, or a portion of a trust permanently set aside
or used exclusively for charitable purposes. An individual, however, generally does not include a trust that is a qualified employee pension or
profit sharing trust under the federal income tax laws, and beneficiaries of such a trust will be treated as holding our shares in proportion to their
actuarial interests in the trust for purposes of requirement 6. We have issued sufficient common stock with sufficient diversity of ownership to
satisfy requirements 5 and 6. In addition, our articles of incorporation restrict the ownership and transfer of stock so that we should continue to
satisfy these requirements. The provisions of our articles of incorporation restricting the ownership and transfer of stock are described in

Restrictions on Ownership of Capital Stock.

A corporation that is a qualified REIT subsidiary 1is not treated as a corporation separate from its parent REIT. All assets, liabilities, and
items of income, deduction, and credit of a qualified REIT subsidiary are treated as assets, liabilities, and items of income, deduction, and credit
of the REIT. A
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qualified REIT subsidiary is a corporation, all of the capital stock of which is owned by the REIT. Thus, in applying the requirements described
herein, any qualified REIT subsidiary that we own will be ignored, and all assets, liabilities, and items of income, deduction, and credit of such
subsidiary will be treated as our assets, liabilities, and items of income, deduction, and credit.

An unincorporated domestic entity, such as a partnership or limited liability company, that has a single owner, generally is not treated as an
entity separate from its parent for federal income tax purposes. An unincorporated domestic entity with two or more owners is generally treated
as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. In the case of a REIT that is a partner in a partnership that has other partners, the REIT is
treated as owning its proportionate share of the assets of the partnership and as earning its allocable share of the gross income of the partnership
for purposes of the applicable REIT qualification tests. Thus, our proportionate share of the assets, liabilities and items of income of any
partnership, joint venture, or limited liability company that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes in which we acquire an
interest, directly or indirectly, will be treated as our assets and gross income for purposes of applying the various REIT qualification
requirements.

A REIT is permitted to own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries. A taxable REIT subsidiary is a fully taxable
corporation that may earn income that would not be qualifying income if earned directly by the parent REIT. However, a taxable REIT
subsidiary may not directly or indirectly operate or manage any hotels or health care facilities or provide rights to any brand name under which
any hotel or health care facility is operated. The subsidiary and the REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a taxable REIT subsidiary.
A taxable REIT subsidiary will pay income tax at regular corporate rates on any income that it earns. In addition, the taxable REIT subsidiary
rules limit the deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a taxable REIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to assure that the taxable REIT subsidiary
is subject to an appropriate level of corporate taxation. Further, the rules impose a 100% excise tax on transactions between a taxable REIT
subsidiary and its parent REIT or the REIT s tenants that are not conducted on an arm s-length basis. We have one taxable REIT subsidiary,
Koger Realty Services, Inc., which has provided, and may in the future provide, management and leasing services for real properties owned by
third parties. See  Taxable REIT Subsidiaries.

Income Tests

We must satisfy two gross income tests annually to maintain our qualification as a REIT. First, at least 75% of our gross income for each
taxable year must consist of defined types of income that we derive, directly or indirectly, from investments relating to real property or
mortgages on real property or qualified temporary investment income. Qualifying income for purposes of that 75% gross income test generally
includes:

rents from real property;

interest on debt secured by mortgages on real property, or on interests in real property;
dividends or other distributions on, and gain from the sale of, shares in other REITsS;
gain from the sale of real estate assets; and

income derived from the temporary investment of new capital that is attributable to the issuance of our shares of beneficial interest or a
public offering of our debt with a maturity date of at least five years and that we receive during the one-year period beginning on the date
on which we received such new capital.

Second, in general, at least 95% of our gross income for each taxable year must consist of income that is qualifying income for purposes of
the 75% gross income test, other types of interest and dividends, gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities, income from certain
hedging instruments or any combination of these. Gross income from our sale of property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business is excluded from both the numerator and the denominator in both income tests. The following paragraphs discuss the
specific application of the gross income tests to us.
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Rents from Real Property. Rent that we receive from our real property will qualify as rents from real property, which is qualifying income
for purposes of the 75% and 95% gross income tests, only if the following conditions are met.

First, the rent must not be based in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person. Participating rent, however, will qualify as rents
from real property if it is based on percentages of receipts or sales and the percentages:

are fixed at the time the leases are entered into;
are not renegotiated during the term of the leases in a manner that has the effect of basing rent on income or profits; and

conform with normal business practice.

More generally, the rent will not qualify as rents from real property if, considering the leases and all the surrounding circumstances, the
arrangement does not conform with normal business practice, but is in reality used as a means of basing the rent on income or profits. Since the
rent that we receive is not be based on the lessees income or sales, our rent should not be considered based in whole or in part on the income or
profits of any person. Furthermore, we have represented that, with respect to other properties that we acquire in the future, we will not charge
rent for any property that is based in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person, except by reason of being based on a fixed
percentage of gross revenues, as described above.

Second, we must not own, actually or constructively, 10% or more of the stock or the assets or net profits of any lessee (a related party
tenant ) other than a taxable REIT subsidiary. The constructive ownership rules generally provide that, if 10% or more in value of our stock is
owned, directly or indirectly, by or for any person, we are considered as owning the stock owned, directly or indirectly, by or for such person.
We have represented that do not and will not rent any property to a related party tenant. However, because the constructive ownership rules are
broad and it is not possible to monitor continually direct and indirect transfers of our stock, no absolute assurance can be given that such
transfers or other events of which we have no knowledge will not cause us to own constructively 10% or more of a lessee other than a taxable
REIT subsidiary at some future date.

As described above, we may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries. As an exception to the related party
tenant rule described in the preceding paragraph, rent that we receive from a taxable REIT subsidiary will qualify as rents from real property as
long as (1) the taxable REIT subsidiary is a qualifying taxable REIT subsidiary (among other things, it does not directly or indirectly operate or
manage any hotels or health care facilities or provide rights to any brand name under which any hotel or health care facility is operated), (2) at
least 90% of the leased space in the property is leased to persons other than taxable REIT subsidiaries and related party tenants, and (3) the
amount paid by the taxable REIT subsidiary to rent space at the property is substantially comparable to rents paid by other tenants of the
property for comparable space.

Third, the rent attributable to the personal property leased in connection with the lease of a property must not be greater than 15% of the
total rent received under the lease. The rent attributable to the personal property contained in a property is the amount that bears the same ratio to
total rent for the taxable year as the average of the fair market values of the personal property at the beginning and at the end of the taxable year
bears to the average of the aggregate fair market values of both the real and personal property contained in the property at the beginning and at
the end of such taxable year (the personal property ratio ). With respect to each property, we believe either that the personal property ratio is less
than 15% or that any income attributable to excess personal property will not jeopardize our ability to qualify as a REIT. There can be no
assurance, however, that the Internal Revenue Service would not challenge our calculation of a personal property ratio, or that a court would not
uphold such assertion. If such a challenge were successfully asserted, we could fail to satisfy the 75% or 95% gross income test and thus lose our
REIT status.
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Fourth, we cannot furnish or render noncustomary services to the tenants of our properties, or manage or operate our properties, other than
through an independent contractor who is adequately compensated and from whom we do not derive or receive any income or through a taxable
REIT subsidiary. However, we need not provide services through an independent contractor, but instead may provide services directly to our
tenants, if the services are usually or customarily rendered in connection with the rental of space for occupancy only and are not considered to be
provided for the tenants convenience. In addition, we may provide a minimal amount of noncustomary services to the tenants of a property,
other than through an independent contractor, as long as our income from the services does not exceed 1% of our income from the related
property. Finally, we may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries, which may provide noncustomary services to
our tenants without tainting our rents from the related independent contractor from whom the REIT itself does not derive or receive any income.
We do not perform any services other than customary ones for our lessees, other than services provided through independent contractors.
Furthermore, we have represented that, with respect to other properties that we acquire in the future, we will not perform noncustomary services
for the lessees of the property to the extent that the provision of such services would jeopardize our REIT status.

If a portion of the rent that we receive from a property does not qualify as rents from real property because the rent attributable to personal
property exceeds 15% of the total rent for a taxable year, the portion of the rent that is attributable to personal property will not be qualifying
income for purposes of either the 75% or 95% gross income test. Thus, if such rent attributable to personal property, plus any other income that
is nonqualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross income test, during a taxable year exceeds 5% of our gross income during the year, we
would lose our REIT status. If, however, the rent from a particular property does not qualify as rents from real property because either (1) the
rent is considered based on the income or profits of the related lessee, (2) the lessee either is a related party tenant or fails to qualify for the
exception to the related party tenant rule for qualifying taxable REIT subsidiaries, or (3) we furnish noncustomary services to the tenants of the
property, or manage or operate the property, other than through a qualifying independent contractor or a taxable REIT subsidiary, none of the
rent from that property would qualify as rents from real property. In that case, we might lose our REIT status because we would be unable to
satisfy either the 75% or 95% gross income test.

In addition to the rent, the lessees are required to pay certain additional charges. To the extent that such additional charges represent either
(1) reimbursements of amounts that we are obligated to pay to third parties, such as a lessee s proportionate share of a property s operational or
capital expenses, or (2) penalties for nonpayment or late payment of such amounts, such charges should qualify as rents from real property.
However, to the extent that such charges do not qualify as rents from real property, they instead will be treated as interest that qualifies for the
95% gross income test.

Interest. The term interest generally does not include any amount received or accrued, directly or indirectly, if the determination of such
amount depends in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person. However, an amount received or accrued generally will not be
excluded from the term interest solely by being based on a fixed percentage or percentages of receipts or sales. Furthermore, to the extent that
interest from a loan that is based on the residual cash proceeds from the sale of the property securing the loan constitutes a shared appreciation
provision, income attributable to such participation feature will be treated as gain from the sale of the secured property.

Prohibited Transactions. A REIT will incur a 100% tax on the net income derived from any sale or other disposition of property, other than
foreclosure property, that the REIT holds primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business. We believe that none of
our assets will be held primarily for sale to customers and that a sale of any of our assets will not be in the ordinary course of our business.
Whether a REIT holds an asset primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business depends, however, on the facts and
circumstances in effect from time to time, including those related to a particular asset. Nevertheless, we will attempt to comply with the terms of
safe-harbor provisions in the federal income tax laws prescribing when an asset sale will not be characterized as a prohibited transaction. We
cannot assure you, however, that we can comply with the safe-harbor provisions
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or that we will avoid owning property that may be characterized as property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course
of a trade or business.

Foreclosure Property. We will be subject to tax at the maximum corporate rate on any income from foreclosure property, other than income
that otherwise would be qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test, less expenses directly connected with the production of
that income. However, gross income from foreclosure property will qualify under the 75% and 95% gross income tests. Foreclosure property is
any real property, including interests in real property, and any personal property incident to such real property:

that is acquired by a REIT as the result of the REIT having bid on such property at foreclosure, or having otherwise reduced such property
to ownership or possession by agreement or process of law, after there was a default or default was imminent on a lease of such property or
on indebtedness that such property secured;

for which the related loan was acquired by the REIT at a time when the default was not imminent or anticipated; and

for which the REIT makes a proper election to treat the property as foreclosure property.

However, a REIT will not be considered to have foreclosed on a property where the REIT takes control of the property as a
mortgagee-in-possession and cannot receive any profit or sustain any loss except as a creditor of the mortgagor. Property generally ceases to be
foreclosure property at the end of the third taxable year following the taxable year in which the REIT acquired the property or longer if an
extension is granted by the Secretary of the Treasury. This grace period terminates and foreclosure property ceases to be foreclosure property on
the first day:

on which a lease is entered into for the property that, by its terms, will give rise to income that does not qualify for purposes of the 75%
gross income test, or any amount is received or accrued, directly or indirectly, pursuant to a lease entered into on or after such day that will
give rise to income that does not qualify for purposes of the 75% gross income test;

on which any construction takes place on the property, other than completion of a building or any other improvement, where more than
10% of the construction was completed before default became imminent; or

which is more than 90 days after the day on which the REIT acquired the property and the property is used in a trade or business which is
conducted by the REIT, other than through an independent contractor from whom the REIT does not derive or receive any income.
Hedging Transactions. From time to time, we may enter into hedging transactions with respect to one or more of our assets or liabilities.

Our hedging activities may include entering into interest rate swaps, caps, and floors, options to purchase such items, and futures and forward
contracts. To the extent that we enter into an interest rate swap or cap contract, option, futures contract, forward rate agreement, or any similar
financial instrument to hedge our indebtedness incurred to acquire or carry real estate assets, any periodic income or gain from the disposition of
such contract should be qualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross income test, but not the 75% gross income test. To the extent that we
hedge with other types of financial instruments, or in other situations, it is not entirely clear how the income from those transactions will be
treated for purposes of the gross income tests. We intend to structure any hedging transactions in a manner that does not jeopardize our status as
a REIT.

Failure to Satisfy Gross Income Tests. If we fail to satisfy one or both of the gross income tests for any taxable year, we nevertheless may
qualify as a REIT for that year if we qualify for relief under certain provisions of the federal income tax laws. Those relief provisions generally
will be available if:

our failure to meet such tests is due to reasonable cause and not due to willful neglect;

we attach a schedule of the sources of our income to our tax return; and
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any incorrect information on the schedule was not due to fraud with intent to evade tax.

We cannot predict, however, whether in all circumstances we would qualify for the relief provisions. In addition, as discussed above in
Taxation of Our Company, even if the relief provisions apply, we would incur a 100% tax on the gross income attributable to the greater of
(i) the amount by which we fail the 75% gross income test and (ii) the amount by which 90%, in each case, of our gross income exceeds the
amount of qualifying income under the 95% gross income test, multiplied by a fraction intended to reflect our profitability.

Asset Tests
To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we also must satisfy the following asset tests at the end of each quarter of each taxable year.
First, at least 75% of the value of our total assets must consist of:
cash or cash items, including certain receivables;
government securities;
interests in real property, including leaseholds and options to acquire real property and leaseholds;
interests in mortgages on real property;
stock in other REITs; and
investments in stock or debt instruments during the one-year period following our receipt of new capital that we raise through equity
offerings or public offerings of debt with at least a five-year term.
Second, of our investments not included in the 75% asset class, the value of our interest in any one issuer s securities may not exceed 5% of
the value of our total assets.
Third, we may not own more than 10% of the voting power or value of any one issuer s outstanding securities.

Fourth, no more than 20% of the value of our total assets may consist of the securities of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries.

Fifth, no more than 25% of the value of our total assets may consist of the securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries and other taxable
subsidiaries and other assets that are not qualifying assets for purposes of the 75% asset test.

For purposes of the second and third asset tests, the term securities does not include stock in another REIT, equity or debt securities of a
qualified REIT subsidiary or taxable REIT subsidiary, mortgage loans that constitute real estate assets, or equity interests in a partnership. The
term securities, however, generally includes debt securities issued by a partnership or another REIT, except that certain straight debt securities
are not treated as securities for purposes of the 10% value test (for example, qualifying debt securities of a corporation of which we own no
equity interest or of a partnership if we own at least a 20% profits interest in the partnership).

We will monitor the status of our assets for purposes of the various asset tests and will manage our portfolio in order to comply at all times
with such tests. If we fail to satisfy the asset tests at the end of a calendar quarter, we will not lose our REIT status if:

we satisfied the asset tests at the end of the preceding calendar quarter; and

the discrepancy between the value of our assets and the asset test requirements arose from changes in the market values of our assets and
was not wholly or partly caused by the acquisition of one or more non-qualifying assets.
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If we did not satisfy the condition described in the second item, above, we still could avoid disqualification by eliminating any discrepancy
within 30 days after the close of the calendar quarter in which it arose.

Distribution Requirements

Each taxable year, we must distribute dividends, other than capital gain dividends and deemed distributions of retained capital gain, to our
stockholders in an aggregate amount at least equal to:

the sum of:
90% of our REIT taxable income, computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain or loss; and
90% of our after-tax net income, if any, from foreclosure property; minus

the sum of certain items of non-cash income.

We must pay such distributions in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if we declare the distribution before
we timely file our federal income tax return for the year and pay the distribution on or before the first regular dividend payment date after such
declaration.

We will pay federal income tax on taxable income, including net capital gain, that we do not distribute to stockholders. Furthermore, if we
fail to distribute during a calendar year, or by the end of January following the calendar year in the case of distributions with declaration and
record dates falling in the last three months of the calendar year, at least the sum of:

85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year;
95% of our REIT capital gain income for such year; and

any undistributed taxable income from prior periods.

We will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the excess of such required distribution over the amounts we actually distribute. We may
elect to retain and pay income tax on the net long-term capital gain we receive in a taxable year. If we so elect, we will be treated as having
distributed any such retained amount for purposes of the 4% nondeductible excise tax described above. We have made, and we intend to
continue to make, timely distributions sufficient to satisfy the annual distribution requirements and to avoid corporate income tax and the 4%
nondeductible excise tax.

It is possible that, from time to time, we may experience timing differences between the actual receipt of income and actual payment of
deductible expenses and the inclusion of that income and deduction of such expenses in arriving at our REIT taxable income. For example, we
may not deduct recognized capital losses from our REIT taxable income. Further, it is possible that, from time to time, we may be allocated a
share of net capital gain attributable to the sale of depreciated property that exceeds our allocable share of cash attributable to that sale. As a
result of the foregoing, we may have less cash than is necessary to distribute all of our taxable income and thereby avoid corporate income tax
and the excise tax imposed on certain undistributed income. In such a situation, we may need to borrow funds or issue additional common or
preferred shares.

Under certain circumstances, we may be able to correct a failure to meet the distribution requirement for a year by paying deficiency
dividends to our stockholders in a later year. We may include such deficiency dividends in our deduction for dividends paid for the earlier year.
Although we may be able to avoid income tax on amounts distributed as deficiency dividends, we will be required to pay interest to the Internal
Revenue Service based upon the amount of any deduction we take for deficiency dividends.

Recordkeeping Requirements

We must maintain certain records in order to qualify as a REIT. In addition, to avoid a monetary penalty, we must request on an annual
basis information from our stockholders designed to disclose the
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actual ownership of our outstanding stock. We have complied, and intend to continue to comply, with these requirements.

Failure to Qualify

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, and no relief provision applies, we would be subject to federal income tax and any
applicable alternative minimum tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates. In calculating our taxable income in a year in which we fail
to qualify as a REIT, we would not be able to deduct amounts paid out to stockholders. In fact, we would not be required to distribute any
amounts to stockholders in that year. In such event, to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits, all distributions to
stockholders would be taxable as ordinary income. Subject to certain limitations of the federal income tax laws, corporate stockholders might be
eligible for the dividends received deduction. Unless we qualified for relief under specific statutory provisions, we also would be disqualified
from taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we ceased to qualify as a REIT. We cannot predict whether
in all circumstances we would qualify for such statutory relief.

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

As described above, we may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries. A taxable REIT subsidiary is a fully
taxable corporation that may earn income that would not be qualifying income if earned directly by us. A taxable REIT subsidiary may provide
services to our lessees and perform activities unrelated to our lessees, such as third-party management, development, and other independent
business activities. However, a taxable REIT subsidiary may not directly or indirectly operate or manage any hotels or health care facilities or
provide rights to any brand name under which any hotel or health care facility is operated. We and our corporate subsidiary must elect for the
subsidiary to be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary. A corporation of which a qualifying taxable REIT subsidiary directly or indirectly owns
more than 35% of the voting power or value of the stock will automatically be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary. Overall, no more than 20%
of the value of our assets may consist of securities of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries, and no more than 25% of the value of our assets
may consist of the securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries and other taxable subsidiaries and other assets that are not qualifying assets for
purposes of the 75% asset test.

Rent that we receive from our taxable REIT subsidiaries will qualify as rents from real property as long as at least 90% of the leased space
in the property is leased to persons other than taxable REIT subsidiaries and related party tenants, and the amount paid by the taxable REIT
subsidiary to rent space at the property is substantially comparable to rents paid by other tenants of the property for comparable space. The
taxable REIT subsidiary rules limit the deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a taxable REIT subsidiary to us to assure that the taxable
REIT subsidiary is subject to an appropriate level of corporate taxation. Further, the rules impose a 100% excise tax on transactions between a
taxable REIT subsidiary and us or our tenants that are not conducted on an arm s-length basis.

We have made a taxable REIT subsidiary election with respect to Koger Realty Services, Inc., which has provided, and may in the future
provide, management and leasing services for real properties owned by third parties. We believe that all transactions between us and Koger
Realty Services, Inc. and any other taxable REIT subsidiary that we form or acquire have been and will be conducted on an arm s-length basis.

State and Local Taxes

We and/or you may be subject to taxation by various states and localities, including those in which we or you transact business, own
property or reside. The state and local tax treatment may differ from the federal income tax treatment described above. Consequently, you should
consult their own tax advisors regarding the effect of state and local tax laws upon an investment in our securities.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities being offered hereby in one or more of the following ways from time to time:

through agents to the public or to investors;
to underwriters for resale to the public or to investors;
directly to investors; or

through a combination of any of these methods of sale.

We will set forth in a prospectus supplement the terms of the offering of securities, including:

the name or names of any agents or underwriters;

the purchase price of the securities being offered and the proceeds we will receive from the sale;

any over-allotment options under which underwriters may purchase additional securities from us;

any agency fees or underwriting discounts and other items constituting agents or underwriters compensation;
any initial public offering price;

any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers; and

any securities exchanges on which such securities may be listed.
Agents

We may designate agents who agree to use their reasonable efforts to solicit purchases for the period of their appointment or to sell
securities on a continuing basis.

We may also engage certain companies to act as our agent ( Offering Agent ) for one or more offerings, from time to time, of our common
stock. If we reach agreement with an Offering Agent with respect to a specific offering, including the number of shares of common stock and
any minimum price below which sales may not be made, then the Offering Agent will try to sell such common stock on the agreed terms. The
Offering Agent could make sales in privately negotiated transactions and/or any other method permitted by law, including sales deemed to be an

at-the-market offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act, including sales made directly on the New York Stock

Exchange, or sales made to or through a market maker other than on an exchange. At-the-market offerings may not exceed 10% of the aggregate
market value of our outstanding voting securities held by non-affiliates on a date within 60 days prior to the filing of the registration statement of
which this prospectus is a part. The Offering Agent will be deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act, with respect to
any sales effected through an at-the-market offering.

Underwriters

If we use underwriters for a sale of securities, the underwriters will acquire the securities for their own account. The underwriters may resell
the securities in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the
time of sale. The obligations of the underwriters to purchase the securities will be subject to the conditions set forth in the applicable
underwriting agreement. We may change from time to time any public offering price and any discounts or concessions the underwriters allow or
reallow or pay to dealers. We may use underwriters with whom we have a material relationship. We will describe in the prospectus supplement
naming the underwriter the nature of any such relationship.
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Direct Sales

We may also sell securities directly to one or more purchasers without using underwriters or agents. Underwriters, dealers and agents that
participate in the distribution of the securities may be underwriters as defined in the Securities Act and any discounts or commissions they
receive from us and any profit on their resale of the securities may be treated as underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities
Act. We will identify in the applicable prospectus supplement any underwriters, dealers or agents and will describe their compensation. We may
have agreements with the underwriters, dealers and agents to indemnify them against specified civil liabilities, including liabilities under the
Securities Act. Underwriters, dealers and agents may engage in transactions with or perform services for us in the ordinary course of their
businesses.

Trading Markets and Listing of Securities

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, each class or series of securities will be a new issue with no established
trading market, other than our common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. We may elect to list any other class or series of
securities on any exchange, but we are not obligated to do so. It is possible that one or more underwriters may make a market in a class or series
of securities, but the underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. We cannot
give any assurance as to the liquidity of the trading market for any of the securities.

Stabilization Activities

Any underwriter may engage in over-allotment, stabilizing transactions, short covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with
Regulation M under the Exchange Act. Over-allotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which create a short position. Stabilizing
transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. Short covering
transactions involve purchases of the securities in the open market after the distribution is completed to cover short positions. Penalty bids
permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a dealer when the securities originally sold by the dealer are purchased in a
covering transaction to cover short positions. Those activities may cause the price of the securities to be higher than it would otherwise be. If
commenced, the underwriters may discontinue any of the activities at any time.

OTHER MATTERS

Legal

The legality of any securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Hunton & Williams LLP. Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the underwriters, if any, by the counsel named in a prospectus supplement. In addition, we have based the description of federal income
tax consequences in Federal Income Tax Consequences of Our Status as a REIT upon the opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP.

Experts

The consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedules incorporated in this prospectus by reference from the
Company s Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference, and has been so incorporated in reliance
upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14.  Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following table sets forth the costs and expense, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, payable by the Registrant in
connection with the sale of the securities being registered. All amounts are estimates.

Amount To Be Paid

SEC registration fee $ 59,722
Printing and mailing expenses 7,000
Legal fees and expenses 25,000
Accounting fees and expenses 7,000
Transfer agent and custodian fees 0
Miscellaneous 1,278
Total $100,000

I

Item 15. Indemnification of Officers and Directors.

The articles of incorporation of the Company, generally, limit the liability of, and provide indemnification for, the Company s directors and
officers to the Company and the shareholders for money damages to the fullest extent permitted from time to time by the Florida law. Insofar as
indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act ), may be permitted to directors and
officers of the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions or otherwise, the Company has been advised that, in the opinion of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.

The Company has purchased director and officer liability insurance for the purpose of providing a source of funds to pay any
indemnification described above.

Item 16.  Exhibits.

Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Koger Equity, Inc., dated May 18, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3(a) of our quarterly report on Form 10-Q, for the three months ended September 30, 2000)
3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Koger Equity, Inc., dated May 12, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.1 of our current report on Form 8-K, filed on May 27, 2004)
4.1 Terms and Provisions of our Series A Preferred Stock, as set forth in the Amendment to the Amended and Restated

Articles of Incorporation of Koger Equity, Inc., as amended, (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our annual
report on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2003)

4.2 Eighth Amendment to the Koger Equity, Inc. Rights Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2004, between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Rights Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(k) of our registration statement on
Form 8-A/A, filed May 27, 2004)

43 Form of Senior Indenture

44 Form of Senior Debt Security

4.5 Form of Subordinated Indenture

4.6 Form of Subordinated Debt Security
5.1 Opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP

1I-1
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Exhibit
No. Description
8.1 Opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP with respect to tax matters
12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends
15.1 Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding unaudited interim financial information
23.1 Consents of Deloitte & Touche LLP
23.2 Consents of Hunton & Williams LLP (included in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1)
25.1* Statement of Eligibility to act as trustee as to the Senior Debt Securities
2D Statement of Eligibility to act as trustee as to the Subordinated Debt Securities
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page of the Registration Statement)

* To be filed subsequent to effectiveness of this registration statement and incorporated by reference herein upon filing.
Item 17.  Undertakings.

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:
(a) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
(1) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent
post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the
registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of
securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum
offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the
changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the

Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or
any material change to such information in this registration statement;
provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(i) and (a)(ii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by
those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement.

(b) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed
to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be
the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(c) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.

(d) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the Registrant s annual report pursuant to
Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual
report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration
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statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(e) To file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust
Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission under Section 305(b)(2) of that Act.

(f) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities
and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event
that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director,
officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been
settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public
policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

1I-3
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of
the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused to this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Boca Raton, State of Florida, on June 1, 2004.

KOGER EQUITY, INC.

BY: /sl THOMAS J. CROCKER

THOMAS J. CROCKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the directors and/or officers of Koger Equity, Inc. whose signature appears below hereby appoints Thomas J. Crocker, Victor A.
Hughes, Jr. and William Wedge, and each of them severally, as his attorney-in-fact to sign in his name and on his behalf, in any and all
capacities stated below and to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, any and all amendments, including post-effective amendments
to this registration statement, making such changes in the registration statement as appropriate, and generally to do all such things in their behalf
in their capacities as officers and directors to enable Koger Equity, Inc. to comply with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, and all
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the
capacities indicated on June 1, 2004.

Signature Title

/s/ VICTOR A. HUGHES, JR. Chairman of the Board of Directors

Victor A. Hughes, Jr.

/s/ THOMAS J. CROCKER Chief Executive Officer and Director

Thomas J. Crocker

/s/ STEVEN A. ABNEY Vice President, Finance
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Steven A. Abney

/s/ D. PIKE ALOIAN Director

D. Pike Aloian

/s BENJAMIN C. BISHOP, JR. Director

Benjamin C. Bishop, Jr.

/s/ DAVID B. HILEY Director

David B. Hiley

/s/ GEORGE F. STAUDTER Director
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George F. Staudter

Director

James C. Teagle
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Koger Equity, Inc., dated May 18, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3(a) of our quarterly report on Form 10-Q, for the three months ended September 30, 2000)
32 Amended and Restated By-laws of Koger Equity, Inc., dated May 12, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.1 of our current report on Form 8-K, filed on May 27, 2004)
4.1 Terms and Provisions of our Series A Preferred Stock, as set forth in the Amendment to the Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation of Koger Equity, Inc., as amended, (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our
annual report on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2003)
4.2 Eighth Amendment to the Koger Equity, Inc. Rights Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2004, between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Rights Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(k) of our registration statement on
Form 8-A/A, filed May 27, 2004)
43 Form of Senior Indenture
4.4 Form of Senior Debt Security
4.5 Form of Subordinated Indenture
4.6 Form of Subordinated Debt Security
5.1 Opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP
8.1 Opinion of Hunton & Williams LLP with respect to tax matters
12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends
15.1 Letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding unaudited interim financial information
23.1 Consents of Deloitte & Touche LLP
23.2 Consents of Hunton & Williams LLP (included in Exhibits 5.1 and 8.1)
25.1* Statement of Eligibility to act as trustee as to the Senior Debt Securities
25.2% Statement of Eligibility to act as trustee as to the Subordinated Debt Securities
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page of the Registration Statement)

* To be filed subsequent to effectiveness of this registration statement and incorporated by reference herein upon filing.
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